
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, May 16, 2016 
4:00 p.m. Open Session   

 
City Hall Council Chambers 

East side of Monte Verde Street 
Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR  
      ELINOR LAIOLO  
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI 
      JULIE WENDT 
      LYNN MOMBOISSE 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
No tour scheduled  
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do 
so now.  Please state the matter on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the 
Board’s agenda will not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future 
meeting.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board.  
Persons are not required to give their name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state 
their name in order that the Secretary may identify them. 
  
E.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Minutes from the April 18, 2016 Historic Resources Board Meeting  

 
F.  ITEM 
 
1.   DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
      Craig Holdren 
      NW corner of Camino Real and Ocean      
      Block: GG, Lots: 1, 3, & 5 
      APN: 010-252-011 
 
 
 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-
051) application for alterations to a historic 
residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zoning District  

Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
May 16, 2016 

Page 1 
1



 
 
2.   MP 16-002 (City War Memorial) 
      American Legion Post 512 
      Ocean and San Carlos  
       

 Consideration of a Municipal Project (MP 
16-002) for the replacement of the War 
Memorial Bell on the Ocean Avenue 
median, at the intersection of Ocean 
Avenue and San Carlos Street. 

   
 
   
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 
H. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 Discussion on Home of the Month Subcommittee 
 
I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  
 
K.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board 
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the 
Planning and Building Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean 
and 7th Avenues during normal business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board is TBD. 
      
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  The 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired 
(TDD) number is 1-800-735-2929. 
 
The City Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to 
come to the podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board 
Secretary.  If you need assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you 
would like to comment on, and the microphone will be brought to you. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
May 16, 2016 

Page 2 
2



 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Marc E. Wiener, Interim Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the 
State of California, that the foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall 
bulletin board, posted at the Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln, May 13, 
2016. 
 
Dated this 13th day of May, 2016, at the hour of 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Marc Wiener, Interim Community Planning and Building Director 

      
 
 

Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
May 16, 2016 

Page 3 
3



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

April 18, 2016 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at 3:00 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Julie Wendt 
Kathryn Gualtieri 
Lynn Momboisse 

 
ABSENT:  Elinor Laiolo 
 

  
 STAFF PRESENT: Marc Wiener, Acting Community Planning and Building Director 

Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner  
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary 
 

B. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 

• DS 16-051 (Taylor), NW corner of Camino Real and Ocean  
 
The Board returned to City Hall to begin the regular meeting at 4:00 p.m.  Chair Dyar 
reconvened the meeting and called for a roll call.  Board Members Dyar, Laiolo, and 
Gualtieri were noted as present.  Board Member Wendt was absent.  
Chair Dyar called for roll call at 4:00 p.m.   
 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D. APPEARANCES 

N/A 
 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Consideration of the minutes of the March 21, 2016 Historic Resources Board 

Meeting 
The March 21, 2016 minutes will be considered at May 11, 2016 meeting.  

 
 

4



F. ITEM 
 

1.  SI 16-027/028 (Joshi) 
            Dennis Joshi 
            Dolores, 4 SE of Ocean  
            Block:76, Lot: 12 
            APN: 010-146-011 
            

 Consideration of a Sign Permit (SI 16-
027/028) applications for the installation of 
awnings on a historic building located in the 
Central Commercial (CC) Zoning District 

Marc Weiner, Acting Planning and Building Director presented the staff report.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Applicant, Dennis Joshi summarized design changes and answered 
questions from the Board. Mr. Joshi indicated all signs will be line up to match wall and 
arch.  
 
Seeing no other speakers, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Board Members held brief discussion.  

 
Board Member Momboisse motioned to issue a Determination of Consistency with 
the Secretary of Standards. Motion seconded by Board Member Wendt and carried by 
the following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: DYAR, GUALTIERI, WENDT & MOMBOISSE 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: LAIOLO 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

2.  DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
            Craig Holdren 
            NW corner of Camino Real and Ocean  
            Block: GG, Lot: 1,3 & 5  
            APN: 010-252-011 
            

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-051) 
application for alterations to a historic 
residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zoning District 

Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner presented the staff report and summarized 
property history. Ms. Tarone answered questions from the Board.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing, seeing no speakers present Chair Dyar closed the 
public hearing. 

 

5



Board Members held discussion. Marc Wiener summarized comments and directions 
given by Board for the Applicant/Owner who were not present in the meeting: no reuse 
of historic windows in new construction, shift bathroom to line up with wall reveal, 
possibly relocate basement, differentiate windows and revise/reduce deck to be more in 
scale with the residence.  

 
Board Member Gualtieri moved to continue item #2 (DS 16-051) until the May 11, 
2016 Historic Resources Board Meeting. Motion seconded by Board Member Wendt 
and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: DYAR, GUALTIERI, WENDT & MOMBOISSE 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: LAIOLO 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
 G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Monthly Activity Report 

Mr. Wiener announced to the Board he will provide Monthly Activity Report for review. 
Mr. Weiner updated the Board on Department staffing levels, statistics on the increase 
of Planning and Building applications received and current City Council actions. 

H.  SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT   

1. Discussion on Home of the Month Subcommittee 
Julie Wendt informed the Board she submitted another article for the “Home of the 
Month” articles to be published in the Carmel Pine Cone.  

I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 N/A 
J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 N/A 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 5:05 p.m. 

 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 
 

6



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

May 16, 2016 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, Interim Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Submitted by: Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-051) for alterations to a historic 

residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards subject to 
the attached conditions. 
 
Application: DS 16-051 (Taylor) APN:  010-252-011 
Block:   GG                            Lots:  1, 3, & 5 
Location: NW corner of Camino Real and Ocean Avenue 
Applicant:  Craig Holdren  
Property Owner:  Bruce Church and Linda Taylor 
 
Background 
The existing residence, known as the “Alfred P. Fraser House”, is a one-and-two story, wood-
framed Craftsman Style residence designed and constructed c. 1918.  In 1976, building records 
show termite repair and interior changes with enclosure of the principal entry.  In 1980, the 
existing detached garage facing Camino Real was altered adding a new 14’ x 7’ overhead door 
and a new 4” x 12” header to the front.  In 2004, an outdoor wood deck was added to the 
interior side and rear (north-west) elevation.  According to Kent Seavey’s Phase II Historic 
Assessment, all additions were consistent with The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties.  The residence was officially listed on the Carmel Inventory of 
Historic Resources on November 2, 2002.  
 
The “Alfred P. Fraser House” is significant at the local level under criterion #2 established by the 
California Register of Historical Resources, PRC Section 5031 (3), for its association with early 

7



DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
May 16, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
civic leader, Alfred P. Fraser, the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea’s first mayor.  It is also significant 
under criterion #3, as an excellent example of Craftsman Style residential design.  Character 
defining features include its one-and-two-story height, irregular plan, wood-shingled exterior 
wall-cladding and roof covering, low-pitched roof, and low-pitched and intersecting stepped 
gabled roof system.   
 
Proposed Project 
The existing residence is 2,521 square feet in size.  The applicant is proposing to add 965 square 
feet including 310 square feet to the main floor, and 84 square feet to the upper level, and 571 
square feet to a proposed new lower floor.  The project consists of the following components: 
(1) the addition of a single-story family room and fireplace off of the end of the north (rear) 
elevation, (2) a small extension of a deck built in 2004 at the north and west elevations of the 
property, (3) the addition of a small bathroom at the north end of the upper-story, (4) the 
creation of a new, lower-level addition that will be partially underground on the south (primary) 
and west (secondary) elevations of the building and will contain two bedrooms, a bathroom 
and a vestibule connecting to the main level, (5) the creation a rooftop deck above the new 
partially-underground bedroom space and revised to be accessible from the main floor hallway 
only, (6) the adjustment of two small existing windows on the east-facing façade.  The new 
addition is proposed to have wood shingle siding that will utilize a pattern of differing shingle 
widths to ensure the new is differentiated from the original historic shingles. Additionally, the 
muntins, window casing and window apron of all new windows on the addition will be altered 
slightly to differentiate them from existing windows.  All work shall conform to the approved 
plans except as conditioned by this permit.       
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Previous Hearing: The following is a list of recommendations made by the Historic Resources 
Board and a staff analysis of how the applicant has or has not revised the design to comply with 
the recommendations. 
 

1. Refrain from reusing existing historic windows on new additions because they appear to 
be original when they are altered and could create a false sense of history. 
 

Analysis:  The applicant has included a note in the Key Notes on page A2 of the plans that the 
applicant shall not reuse the property’s original historic windows in the proposed new addition. 

 
2. The applicant shall recess and offset the bathroom addition so that it is pushed back 

8



DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
May 16, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 

toward the west and so there is a wall reveal that will differentiate the new addition 
from the historic portion.  

 
Analysis:  The applicant has offset, by approximately 2 feet, the wall of second-story bathroom 
addition on the north elevation.  In order to accommodate the offset, the applicant is proposing 
to remove an original historic casement window with three panels on the north elevation.  The 
new proposal will locate a new window on the north elevation of the addition as well as a new 
window on the original wall, immediately adjacent to the addition.  Staff supports this change 
despite the removal of the original window, because offsetting the addition creates a wall 
reveal that will differentiate the addition from the historic portion. 
 

3. Investigate relocating the lower-floor bedrooms, bathroom and vestibule currently 
proposed on the primary south-west elevation. The Board suggests locating the lower-
floor on the secondary north elevation, perhaps under the newer deck. 
 

Analysis:  The applicant has provided a written response, included as Attachment E, stating the 
reasons he chose not to locate the subterranean bedrooms and vestibule under the existing 
deck. The applicant’s proposal creates a bedroom wing with two new bedrooms located below 
two existing main-floor bedrooms with the objective of maintaining the privacy of this bedroom 
wing. In his response, the applicant expresses his preference to keep the lower floor bedrooms 
on the south-west portion of the property to allow for the creation of a private bedroom wing 
and to result in the least amount of grading.  
 
Staff notes that the elevation at the north end of the property at the existing wood deck is 
approximately 2 to 3 feet higher than the grade at the south end of the property and thus an 
addition in this location would require more grading.   
 
While the south elevation of the home is largely not visible from the public right-of-way due to 
heavy tree cover along Ocean Avenue, the addition, as proposed, will be located on a 
previously-unaltered primary elevation (the front of the residence) facing Ocean Avenue.  In 
staff’s opinion, it would be best to locate the addition on altered or secondary elevations only.  
Staff notes that the applicant has withdrawn the original proposal to install French doors on the 
south, primary elevation, and is instead proposing to retain the original historic 3-casement 
window. The Historic Resources Board may decide whether this property’s proposal to 
construct an addition on the south-west portion of the residence is consistent with the 
intention of Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Alterations to Historic Resources. 
 

9



DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
May 16, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 

4. Differentiate the shingle siding from the existing historic shingle siding and please 
include the measurements of the historic shingle versus the new proposed shingle.   
 

Analysis:  For the new additions, the applicant is proposing wood shingle siding that will have 
alternating dimensions that will differentiate it from the historic siding.  The specific shingle 
dimensions are provided on Sheet A3.2 of the plans. The shingles will also be offset by ¾-inch to 
1-inch.  This will differentiate the addition from the historic portion of the residence which has 
aligned wood shingles, measuring 6 inches in width and 1 foot, 3 ½-inches in height.   In staff’s 
opinion, the proposed shingles provide an adequate visual differentiation between the new 
siding and the historic siding. 

 
5. Differentiate the new proposed windows from the existing windows, including the 

headers and the lintels at the top of the windows. 
 

Analysis:  In order to differentiate the new windows, the applicant proposes to extend the 
vertical muntin bar to the bottom of the window, use a narrower, 2-inch-wide trim at the 
bottom of the window, construct a narrower, 1 ½-inch window sill and add a 2-inch window 
apron.  The applicant also proposes to shorten the lintel at the top of the window to eliminate 
the protruding edges as well as to narrow both the window lintel and vertical window trim. In 
staff’s opinion, the proposed window and trim designs provide an adequate visual 
differentiation between the new windows and the historic windows. 
 

6. Consider revising the deck posts on the existing newer deck on the west elevation to be 
more in-scale with the historic building. 
 

Analysis:  The applicant has provided a written response, included as Attachment E, stating the 
reasons he chose not to redesign the non-historic deck built in 2008 on the property’s north-
west elevation.  The applicant states that the deck posts were crafted to appear more 
substantial in scale to differentiate them from the, “more gracile vocabulary of the original 
house.”  While staff does support locating the proposed lower-floor bedrooms and vestibule 
addition under this deck, staff does not see the need to redesign the deck if other alterations 
are not being made to it. 
 
Historic Evaluation Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act requires environmental 
review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards. The proposed alterations were reviewed by the City’s Historic Preservation 
Consultant: Kent Seavey. The Phase II Historic Assessment prepared by Mr. Seavey on February 

10



DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
May 16, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 5  
 
3, 2016, includes an analysis of the proposed changes based on the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (Attachment D). The assessment concludes 
that the project would be consistent with the Standards.    
 
Alterations:  The Secretary’s Standards recommend that new additions be placed on secondary 
elevations and where alterations have already occurred.  Standard #9 states that “the new work 
will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the massing, size, and scale to 
protect the historic integrity of the property.”  Standard #10 states “New additions and adjacent 
or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, if removed in the future, 
the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be 
unimpaired.” 
 
The Phase II Assessment identifies that the proposed additions would be on altered primary 
elevations and secondary elevations; however, staff notes that the partially subterranean 
bedrooms and vestibule will be visible on both the west (secondary) elevation as well as the 
south (primary) elevation. The Assessment states that the south (front) elevation of the 
residence is considered a primary elevation, as it fronts Ocean Avenue.  However, staff notes 
that the south primary elevation of the home is not visible from the public right-of-way due to 
the presence of trees and vegetation. As stated above, in staff’s opinion, it would be best to 
locate the addition on altered or secondary elevations only.  The Historic Resources Board may 
decide whether this property’s proposal to construct an addition on the south-west portion of 
the residence is consistent with the intention of the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 
Alterations to Historic Resources. 
 
In the Phase II Assessment, Mr. Seavey concludes that the new additions are designed and 
located so that the character-defining features of the building would not be radically changed 
and that the additions are compatible with the size, scale, and massing of the existing 
residence. The proposed additions include wood-shingle siding and windows that are 
differentiated from the historic residence as recommended by Standard #9.  
 
In regard to Standard #10, the proposal includes three additions to the property which includes 
a single-story family room and fireplace on the north (rear) elevation, an upper-story bathroom 
on the north elevation, and a new, lower-level addition containing two bedrooms, a bathroom 
and a vestibule connecting to the main level.  To accommodate these additions, staff notes that 
several original windows will be removed.  On the west elevation, a small original, single-light, 
double-casement window will be removed and replaced with a new wood door at the rooftop 

11



DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
May 16, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 6  
 
deck.  On the north elevation, a small single window, a triple-casement window and a wood 
door on the main floor and a triple casement window on the upper-floor will be removed to 
make room for the main-floor living room addition and the upper-floor bathroom addition.  On 
the east and south elevations no permanent window removals are proposed. Staff notes that 
since the applicant is proposing permanent additions to the residence, these additions are not 
likely to be removed in the future and the original windows proposed for removal are not likely 
to be reinstalled. To ensure compliance with Standard #10, staff has drafted a condition 
recommended by Mr. Seavey in his Phase II Report that the applicant shall create measured 
drawings and photo documentation of the existing north rear elevation where the living room 
addition is proposed as well as the existing south-west side elevation where the sublevel 
bedroom additions and rooftop deck are proposed.  
 
In summary, the Phase II Assessment concludes that the proposed work will be executed 
consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties.  Staff concurs with Mr. Seavey and supports the overall project subject to the 
attached conditions of approval (Attachment A).    
 
Alternatives:  The staff recommendation is to issue a determination that the application, as 
conditioned, is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards.  Alternatively, the Board could find 
the application inconsistent with the Secretary’s Standards, which would result in either the 
withdrawal of the project by the applicant, or the requirement that the project undergo 
additional CEQA analysis to evaluate impacts on historic resources.   
 
Environmental Review:  The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  If the alterations are consistent with the standards, 
potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further analysis.  Staff concludes 
that the proposed alterations would be consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
and therefore, do not require additional environmental analysis.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 
• Attachment B – DPR 523 Form  
• Attachment C – Phase II Historic Assessment 
• Attachment D – Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
• Attachment E – Response Letter from Craig Holdren  

12



DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
May 16, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 7  
 

• Attachment F – Original Elevations 
• Attachment G – Project Plans 

13



Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 
 
 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA  

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

DS 16-051 
Bruce Church and Linda Taylor  
NW corner of Camino Real and 
Ocean Avenue  
Block: GG Lots: 1, 3 & 5 
APN: 010-252-011 

 
 

 
AUTHORIZATION: 

 
1. This Determination of Consistency (DS 16-051) authorizes alterations to an existing 

2,521-square foot residence, subject to Planning Commission approval, as shown on the 
plans dated May 2, 2016. The project includes a total addition of 965 square feet 
including 310 square feet to the main floor, and 84 square feet to the upper level, and 
571 square feet to a proposed new lower floor.  The project consists of the following 
components: (1) the addition of a single-story family room and fireplace off of the end of 
the north (rear) elevation, (2) a small extension of a deck built in 2004 at the north and 
west elevations of the property, (3) the addition of a small bathroom at the north end of 
the upper-story, (4) the creation of a new, lower-level addition that will be partially 
underground on the south (primary) and west (secondary) elevations of the building and 
will contain two bedrooms, a bathroom and a vestibule connecting to the main level, (5) 
the creation a rooftop deck above the new partially-underground bedroom space and 
revised to be accessible from the main floor hallway only, (6) the adjustment of two 
small existing windows on the east-facing façade.  The new addition is proposed to have 
wood shingle siding that will utilize a pattern of differing shingle widths to ensure the 
new is differentiated from the original historic shingles. Additionally, the muntins, 
window casing and window apron of all new windows on the addition will be altered 
slightly to differentiate them from existing windows.  All work shall conform to the 
approved plans except as conditioned by this permit.    

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

 
1. Measured drawings and photo-documentation of the existing elevations shall be 

prepared and submitted to the City to include in the historical record. 
 
 
 14



 
DS 16-051 (Taylor) 
May 16, 2016 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2 

 
2. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 

meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to ensure compliance 
with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties.

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



ATTACHMENT D 
 
 

SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT 
OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES (Rehabilitation) 

 
 

1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires 
minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment." 
 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of 
historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be 
avoided." 
 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. 
Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural 
features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken." 
 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic significance in 
their own right shall be retained and preserved." 
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship 
that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 
deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old 
in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. 
Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, and 
pictorial evidence." 
 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic 
materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be 
undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 
 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. 
If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken. 
 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic 
materials that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old 
and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the 
historic integrity of the property and its environment." 
 
10. "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a 
manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property 
and its environment would be unimpaired." 

25



26



27



28

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment F - Original Elevations



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

May 16, 2016 

To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 

From: Marc Wiener, Interim Community Planning and Building Director 

Subject:  Consideration of a Municipal Project (MP 16-002) for the replacement of 
the War Memorial Bell on the Ocean Avenue median, at the intersection 
of Ocean Avenue and San Carlos Street.  

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards  
 
Application: MP 16-002 APN: City Right of Way  
Block: n/a                                   Lot: n/a 
Location:  World War I Memorial Arch in the Ocean Avenue median, on the east side of the 

intersection of Ocean Avenue and San Carlos Street. 
Applicant: American Legion Post 512 Property Owner: City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
 
Background:  
 
The World War I memorial arch was constructed in 1922 under the design and supervision of 
Charles Sumner Greene, who is one of the founders of the Arts and Crafts Movement.  The arch 
design included a bell, however, sufficient funds were not available at the time of the original 
construction to cast the bell hence it was not hung in the arch.  The arch stood empty until the 
City’s 50th birthday in 1966 when a bell was gifted from Sir Harry Downie, a master restorer of 
the Carmel Mission.  The gifted bell was likely constructed in 1692 and is historic in its own 
right, however, it did not match the original Charles Sumner Green design.  The 1692 bell was 
recently removed by the City is being stored in the history section of the Children’s Library.   
 
On January 19, 2016, the Historic Resources Board (HRB) reviewed a proposal to replace the 
existing bell on the World War I memorial arch with a new bell that more closely resembled the 
Charles Sumner Green design.  The HRB was supportive of the concept, but requested that the 

44



MP 16-002 (War Memorial Bell) 
May 16, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
applicant revise the bell design to more closely replicate the Charles Sumner Greene design and 
that the applicant provide shop drawings. 
 
Following the meeting with the HRB, the applicant presented the bell-replacement concept to 
the City Council at the March 3, 2016 meeting.  The Council accepted the concept, but 
requested that the City retain a historic architect to review the proposal and provide 
recommendations.  The City has retained the services of Brett Brenkwitz of Franks & Brenkwitz, 
LLP.  Mr. Brenkwitz is a historic architect that has worked on several California mission 
restoration projects, including the recent Carmel Mission restoration.  
 
Staff analysis:  
 
Bell Design:   The applicant provided shop drawings to the City, prepared by John Kolstad, 
depicting a design that matches the design and dimensions of Charles Sumner Green design.  
The City’s historic architect, Mr. Brenkwitz, approached this project by replicating the Charles 
Sumner Greene drawings and the John Kolstad drawings in AutoCAD and comparing the 
dimensions (Sheet B-1).  
 
Mr. Brenkwitz notes that the bell depicted in the Charles Sumner Greene drawing is not entirely 
symmetrical and as such the drawings could be interpreted that the bell could either be 19” or 
20” wide.  It is noted that a 19” width would provide approximately 3” of clearance from the 
masonry arch, which may be preferable to allow the bell additional airspace.  Staff notes that 
the Kolstad shop drawings submitted by the applicant include a bell width of 20.5”, which 
would allow approximately 1.5” of airspace between the bell and the arch.  The applicant has 
indicated some concern that a bell width of 20.5” is necessary to maintain the golden ratio.  The 
board should consider the appropriate width of the bell. 
 
Regardless of which bell width is selected, in staff’s opinion the revised drawings submitted by 
the applicant adequately replicates the Charles Sumner Greene design.  The applicant has not 
yet determined how the bell will be attached to the arch.  As noted by Mr. Brenkwitz, the 
attachment yoke depicted in the Greene drawing is somewhat “sketchy” and there are 
connectivity issues that must be taken into account when considering this aspect of the design.  
The applicant could return with details on this once the attachment yoke design is determined.        
 
 

45



MP 16-002 (War Memorial Bell) 
May 16, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 
Environmental Review:  The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior Standard’s for historic resources.  If the alterations are consistent with 
the standards, potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further analysis.  
Staff concludes that the proposed alterations would be consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards and therefore, do not require additional environmental analysis.   
 
Alternatives:  The staff recommendation is to issue a Determination of Consistency with the 
Secretary’s Standards.  Alternatively, the Board could direct additional changes to the plan to 
achieve consistency with the Secretary’s Standards, in which case, the Board may need to 
continue the item to allow the applicant to return with further-revised plans.  Finally, the Board 
could find the application inconsistent with the Secretary’s Standards, which would result in 
either the applicant withdrawing the project or require additional CEQA analysis to evaluate 
impacts on historic resources. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – DPR 523 Form 
• Attachment B – Consultant Memo and Drawings 

46



47

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



48



49



50



51



52



53



54


	MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.   CONSENT AGENDA
	J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS
	K.  ADJOURNMENT


	DS 16-051 (Taylor) - Packet.pdf
	DS 16-051 (Taylor) - Attach A - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	Attachment A – Conditions of Approval
	SPECIAL CONDITIONS:





